From: Scala, Mary Joy

Sent: Wednesday, August 26, 2015 3:28 PM

To: 'Daniel Costelio'

Cc: Shannon Kraiger

Subject: BAR Action - August 18, 2015 - 900 W Main Street

August 26, 2015

AT&T Mobility
570 Colonial Park Drive, Suite 307
Roswell, GA 30075

RE: Certificate of Appropriateness Application BAR 15-07-01

900 West Main Street

Tax Parcel 10007800

AT&T Mobility, Owner/ Shannon Kraiger (Velocitel), Applicant Replace existing antennas and redesign
stealth enclosures

Dear Applicant,
The above referenced project was discussed before a meeting of the City of Charlottesville Board of

Architectural Review (BAR) on August 18, 2015. The following action was taken:

The BAR accepted the applicant’s request for deferral (7-0). The BAR requested: correctly scaled
drawings and a photo simulation from West Main Street. The City attorney’s office via Mary Joy wanted
to make sure the applicant understood the fast moving federal regulations for antennas and how a
deferral would affect their timeline for the project.

If you have any questions, please contact me at 434-970-3130 or scala@charlottesville.org.

Mary Joy Scala, AICP

Preservation and Design Planner

City of Charlottesville

Department of Neighborhood Development Services
City Hall — 610 East Market Street

P.O. Box 911

Charlottesville, VA 22902

Ph 434.970.3130 FAX 434.970.3359
scala@charlottesville.org




CITY OF CHARLOTTESVILLE

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW
STAFF REPCORT

August 18,2015

Certificate of Appropriateness Application

BAR 15-07-01

900 West Main Street

Tax Parcel 10007800

AT&T Mobility, Owner/ Shannon Kraiger (Velocitel), Applicant
Replace existing antennas and redesign stealth enclosures

Background

This property, the Hampton Inn built in 1997, is a noncontributing structure in the West Main
Street ADC district.

Nov. 8, 2002 - Certificate of Appropriateness- Installation of cellular equipment of roof with
concealment chimneys- Approved.

Dec. 16, 2014 - Certificate of Appropriateness- Proposal to make improvements to a rear patio-
Approved (8-0).

July 21, 2015 - The BAR accepted the applicant’s request for deferral (9-0). The BAR
requested: final structural drawings; plans with elevations; and photo simulationss.

Application

The applicant proposes to remove and replace three existing antenna concealment chimneys, which
are currently 4x4x8, with three new chimneys at 6x6x13. They wish to install three new LTE
antennas, three new RRUs, three new DC2s in the new chimney. Applicant wishes to reinstall six
existing RRUs and three existing DC2s in new chimney. Install one new FC12 on existing platform
and install new RBS 6601 and four new breakers in existing flexent cabinet. The platform will have
a fourth concealment wall, designed and fabricated to match the existing walls that were originally
manufactured. It will be SSV with a brick appearance. The one-sided screenwall will have an
approximate panel linear footage of 9’x7’ with a panel height of 10’. The screenwall support
structure will be FRP and steel baseplates only, the steel finish will be galvanized.

The applicant will submit the requested drawings and photos at the BAR meeting.

Criteria and Guidelines

Review Criteria Generally

Sec. 34-284(b) of the City Code states that,

In considering a particular application the BAR shall approve the application unless it finds:

(1) That the proposal does not meet specific standards set forth within this division or applicable
provisions of the Design Guidelines established by the board pursuant to Sec.34-288(6); and



(2) The proposal is incompatible with the historic, cultural or architectural character of the district in

which the property is located or the protected property that is the subject of the application.

Pertinent Standards for Review of Construction and Alterations include:

(1) Whether the material, texture, color, height, scale, mass and placement of the proposed
addition, maodification or construction are visually and architecturally compatible with

the site and the applicable design control district;

(2) The harmony of the proposed change in terms of overall proportion and the size and
placement of entrances, windows, awnings, exterior stairs and signs;

(3) The Secretary of the Interior Standards for Rehabilitation set forth within the Code of
Federal Regulations (36 C.F.R. §67.7(b)), as may be relevant;

(4) The effect of the proposed change on the historic district neighborhood;

(5) The impact of the proposed change on other protected features on the property, such as
gardens, landscaping, fences, walls and walks;

(6) Whether the proposed method of construction, renovation or restoration could have an
adverse impact on the structure or site, or adjacent buildings or structures;

(8) Any applicable provisions of the City’s Design Guidelines.

Pertinent Design Review Guidelines for Site Design and Elements

H. Utilities and Other Site Appurtenances

Site appurtenances, such as overhead utilities, fuel tanks, utility poles and meters, antennae, exterior
mechanical units, and trash containers, are a necessary part of contemporary life. However, their
placement may detract from the character of the site and building.

1

o

Plan the location of overhead wires, utility poles and meters, electrical panels, antennae, trash
containers, and exterior mechanical units where they are least likely to detract from the character

of the site.

Screen utilities and other site elements with fences, walls or plantings

Encourage the installation of utility services underground.

Antennae and communication dishes should be placed in inconspicuous rooftop locations, not in a
front yard.

Screen all rooftop mechanical equipment with a wall of material harmonious with the building or
structure.

Discussion and Recommendations

The pertinent Telecommunication Facilities section of the zoning ordinance that was adopted in
2003 states:

Sec. 34-1073. Facilities by district.
(a) Within the city's historic and entrance corridor overlay districts:

(1) The following shall be permitted uses: antennae or microcells mounted on existing
communications towers established prior to February 20, 2001; attached
communications facilities utilizing utility poles or other electric transmission
facilities as the attachment structure; and other attached communications facilities



if such other attached communications facilities are not visible from any adjacent
street or property.

(2) The following shall be prohibited uses: attached communications facilities where
such facilities are visible from any adjacent street or property, and communications
facilities utilizing alternative tower, monopole tower, guyed tower, lattice tower
and self-supporting tower support structures.

(b) Within other zoning districts of the city, the permitted communications facilities are
identified within the use matrix for the applicable districts. Facilities other than
those identified within the use matrix for a particular district shall be prohibited.

Staff has nothing new to add until the requested information has been submitted.

Suggested Motion

Having considered the standards set forth within the City Code, including City Design Guidelines for
Site Design and Elements, I move to find that the proposed antenna and concealment chimney
changes satisfy the BAR's criteria and are compatible with this property and other properties in the
West Main Street ADC district, and that the BAR approves the application as submitted (or with the
following modifications...)



Scala, Mag Joy

From: Daniel Costello <Daniel.Costello@FDHVelocitel.com>

Sent: Wednesday, August 12, 2015 4:01 PM

To: Scala, Mary Joy

Cc: Susan Lankford; Paul Robnett; Shannon Kraiger

Subject: RE: 900 West Main Street CV325

Attachments: CV325 900 West Main Street part 1.pdf; CV325 900 West Main Street part 2.pdf
Mary Joy:

Attached is what we will be bringing to the meeting on the 18",
Part 1 consists of the three items that the board requested.

1. Photo Simulation

2. Building Elevation

3. Structural Analysis

Part 2 consists of photos taken from across the street. The reason for these is to request an exception form stealthing
the fourth wall of the platform on the roof. We visited the site last week to get additional information on the stealth
design. We found that it will be quite expensive to complete the request because of AC panels that were part of the
original installation. Enclosing this will mean a platform expansion that will need to be done to allow for the clearances
required for access to these panels.
Additionally, from the photos submitted, you can see that the platform is not visible from the street. I had to go across
the street and half way down the block in order to see the existing platform enclosure (last photo blow up).
Photo Descriptions are as follows:

1. Google map showing the locations that the photos were taken from

2. View of existing equipment platform

3. Equipment platform showing AC panels and access ladder

4-7 Photos taken from across the street looking at the building

8. Photo from middle of bank parking lot. Firs spot | could see the platform enclosure

9. Blow up of enclosure platform at same location as 8. Above.

Sincerely,

Daniel K. Costello

Project Manager

4144 Innslake Drive

Glen Allen, VA 23060
Office: 804-217-7088 x151
Mobile: 315.717.6547

gelnl \/ELOCITEL ﬂ

el

Email: daniel.costello@FDHVelocitel.com
Website: www.fdhvelocitel.com

The information contained in this message may be privileged and confidential and protected from disclosure. If the reader of this message is not the intended
recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or

1
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THE PROPOSED FACILITY WILL 8E UNMANNED AND DOES NOT

REQUIRE POTABLE WATER OR SEWER SERVICE AND IS NOT FOR
HUMAN HABITAT. (NO HANDICAP ACCESS IS REQUIRED).

OCCUPANCY 15 UMITED TO PERIODIC MAINTENANCE AND JNSPECTION,
APPROXIMATELY 2 TIMES PER MONTH, BY ATAT TECHNICNS,

NO NOISE, SMOKE, DUST, ODOR OR VIBRATIONS WILL RESULT FROM
THIS PROPOSAL

QUTDOOR STCRAGE AND SOLID WASTE CONTANERS ARE NOT
PROPOSED.

ETWEEN THE CONSTRUCTION EclmTDNAND‘l'H:DRAWINES,
CIVERN.

SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REPARING ANY
DAMAGE CAUSED BY THE COMSTRUCTION OPERATION.

SUBCOMTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIELE FOR' OBTAINING AL
PERMITS AND INSFEBTKJNS REQGURED FOR CONSTRUCTI

SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL TRASH AND DESRIS FROM THE
SITE ON A DALY BASIS,

FORMATION SHOWN ON THESE DRAWINGS WAS OBTAINED FROM SITE
VISI'KS AND DRAWINGS PROVIDED BY THE STTE OWNER.
SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ATET OF ANY DISCREPANCIES PRIOR
TO ORDERING MATERIAL OR PROCEEDING WITH

NO WHITE STROEIC LIGHTS ARE PERMITTED. LUGHTING, IF REQUIRED,
LL MEET FAA STANDARDS AND RECUIREMENTS,

ALL SIGNS SHALL DE FURNISHED AND INSTALLED AT ALL ATET
WIRELESS SERVICES SITES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATION AT&T
SYSTEM GROUNDING DATED JUNE 20711.

NG ADDITIONAL PARKING TD BE PROPOSED. EXISTING ACCESS AND
PARKING TO BE USED.

NO LANDSCAPING IS PROPOSER AT THIS SME.
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ALL COAXIAL CABLE MNSTALLATIONS TO FOLLOW MANUFACTURER'S
INSTRUCTIONS.

GENERAL NOTES:
1. FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTION DRAWNGS, THE FDLLOWNG DEFINTIONS SHALL APPLY:
CONTRACTOR — CONTRACTOR

ODNTR‘CTDR GENERAL CONTRACTOR (CONSTRUCTION)
OWNER — ATAT WIRELESS
2 AL SUE WORK SHALL BE COMPLETED AS INDICATED ON THE DRAWINGS AND PROJECT
SPECIFICATIONS,
3. DRAWINGS PROVIDED HERE ARE NOT TO BE SCALED AND ARE INTENDED TO SHOW OUTLINE ONLY.

4 ALLMATMFURMANDINSTMEDSHALLBENSMWWCE
APPUCABLE CODES, REGULATIONS, AND WDRWMML
APPROPRUTE NOTICES AND COMPLY WITH ALL RECULATIONS, AND
LAWFULORDBBQFMWWNWNGTPEPERFORMOFTIEWORK

5. ALL WORK CARRIED OUT SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE MUNICIPAL ARD UTILITY COMPANY
SPECINCATIONS AND LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL CODES, ORDINANCES AND APPLICAALE REGLLATIONS.

6. UNLESS NOTED mmmmmmmzm MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT,
APPURTENANCES, AND LABOR NECESSARY TO COMPLETE ALL INSTALLATIONS AS INDICATED ON
THE DRAWINGS,

7 1'HE SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL ALL EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS IN ACCORDANCE WITH

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS UNLESS SPECIFICAULY STATED OTHERWISE.

8. rrmzmzommmszmsmsswuwmumwms.ms
PROPOSE AN ALY TION SPACE FOR APPROVAL BY THE
CONTRACTOR AND SITE OWNER.

9. THE SUBCONTRACTOR EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS, PAVEMENTS, CLIRES,
LANDSTCAPING AND STRUCTURES. N{DMGEDPARTMLLBEEPMEATWS
EXPENSE TO THE SATISFACTION OF OWNER.

10. THE SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT UMILTY LOCATING SERVICES PRIOR TO THE START OF
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EQUIPMENT,
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20. SUBCONTRACTOR SHALL LEAVE PREMISES IN A CLEAN CONDITION.
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Project Number: U0142-731-151

July 29, 2015

STEALTH® Concealment Solutions
3034-A Ashley Phosphate Rd.
North Charleston, SC 29418

ATTENTION: Caroline Watson

REFERENCE: Hampton Inn Suites I1
Analysis of existing structure with loading from (3) ballasted 6° square x 12° tall chimneys

900 West Main Street Charlottesville, VA

Dear Caroline:

Per your request, we have performed an analysis of the existing roof structure that will support the proposed
ballasted concealment chimneys. The purpose of our analysis was to determine if the existing eight inch hollow-
core precast slab roof structure has adequate capacity to support the proposed chimneys and ballast.

DOCUMENTATION:
The following documentation was used for this analysis:

e  Preliminary Zoning Drawings produced by Velocitel Complete Wireless Solutions dated 07/23/15.
« Partial Structural Analysis produced by URS including a partial roof framing plan and column schedule dated
08/28/2002

DESIGN CRITERIA:
Qur analysis uses the following codes and parameters:

e Code: 2012 International Building Code

s  Wind Parameters:
o Basic Wind Speed: 115 mph (3-Second Gust)
o Wind Exposure: B
o Risk Category: IT

o  Gravity Loading Parameters:
o Estimated Existing Roof Dead Load: 80 psf (Assumes min 2” concrete topping slab)

o Design Ground Snow Load: 30 psf (Ps: 18.9 psf)
o Design Roof Live Load: 20 psf

STRUCTURE COMPOSITION:

It is our understanding that the existing roof structure consists of 8” thick precast hollow core concrete slab panels
spanning approximately 25°-3”. They are supported by 8” CMU walls & {intels.

CONCILUSIONS:

It is our conclusion that with a large enough ballast frame the existing building would be adequate to support the
additional loading created by the proposed chimneys. Prior to final design of the chimney and ballast frame the existing
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roof will need to be verified to determine if the hollow core slab is covered with a concrete topping or alternate roofing
material.

Where there is no information on the manufacturer or the reinforcing used in the precast hollow core concretes slab,
the increased load can be justified per section 807.5 of the International Existing Building Code (IEBC). The ballast
frame supporting the 6° square x 12 tall chimney will be required to be large enough and rigid enongh to distribute
the gravity load plus overturning wind load throughout the entirc frame such that the increase in stress would be less
than a 10% increase. Based on our preliminary analysis we determined that a 20° square ballast frame will be required
to distribute the load over a large enough area. With a frame this size the stress increase caused by the proposed
loading would meet the requirements of sections 807.5 of the JEBC and therefore not require the existing building to

be retrofit.

In addition current hollow core precast slab manufactures typically have a superimposed design load of 65 psf'ta 100
psf for similar precast slabs. The design roof live load plus the additional superimposed loads from the proposed

ballasted chimneys is less than 35 psf.

LIMITATIONS:

The conclusions above are provided based upon a preliminary review analysis prepared by our office and information
the client provided. These conclusions are intended to describe the general structural feasibility of the proposed
installation. In addition, these conclusions are in no way guaranteed to reflect the final design should the design
change due to required revisions, alterations, or additions to the information contained herein due to unforeseen issues
or issues beyond our control. These issues may include but are not limited to: client driven revisions, jurisdiction or
third party plans check comments and revisions, discrepancies between the construction drawings and the as-built
condition of the existing structure discovered by the contractor during demolition and construction, coniractor error
during construction, etc. Vector Structural Engineering claims no liability for design, construction, or any other fees
or costs associated with such revisions.

A representative from Vector has not visited the site and thus no observations were made of the structural integrity,
materials used or quality of worl of any portions of the structure. The analysis and conclusions described above are
also based on the assumption that the structure was constructed in accordance with the above referenced documents.
Vector Structural Engineering makes no claim as to the correctness of the current condition of the structure. The
structure is assumed to be in good condition, free of damage or deterioration. The contractor shall notify Vector
Structural Engineering immediately should any damage, deterioration, or discrepancies between the as-built condition
of the existing structure and the assumed condition described in this report be found.

We hope this meets your needs. If you have any further questions regarding this matter, please call this office at your
convenience.

Best Regards,
VECTOR STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING
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